
     
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION 
 AGENDA       
 Wednesday, July 6, 2016  

 
Town Hall Room 

 Meridian Municipal Building 
 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 

 
Work Session 
 

1. Call to Order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2. Approval of the work session agenda 
 

3. Discussion Items 
 

a. Greenspace map & 2016-17 Strategic Plan review 
b. Possible Working Groups on Wetland Enhancement/Drinking Water 
c. Potential Environmental Commission vacancy, Fall of 2016 

 
4. Public remarks 

 
5. Adjournment 

 
Regular Meeting 
 

1. Call to Order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the June 1, 2016 work session and special meeting 
 

4. Public Remarks 
 

5. Chair's Report 
 

6. Staff Report  
 
7. Commission Liaison/Workgroup Reports (Land Preservation, Energy, Parks) 
 
8. ACTION ITEM: Wetland Use Permit #16-03 (Towner Road Park) 

 
9. Public Remarks 

 
10. Adjournment 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MINUTES 
Meridian Municipal Building – Town Hall Room 
June 1, 2016 - Draft 
 

WORK SESSION 
 
PRESENT: Chair McConnell, Vice-Chair Schools, Commissioners Sarver, Dickmann, Jackson 

and Kielbaso 
        
ABSENT: Commissioner Masten 
 
STAFF: Harmony Gmazel, AICP, Associate Planner 
 
OTHERS: Ben Holland, Student 
 
 

1. CALL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
                       Chair McConnell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE WORK SESSION AGENDA 
 
                       Approved by consent without objection.  
 
 

3. A. POSSIBLE WORKING GROUP ON WETLAND ENHANCEMENT 
B. POSSIBLE WORKING GROUP ON DRINKING WATER AND LEAD 

   
 

The potential for two new workgroups was discussed. The workgroups would pertain to 
wetland enhancement activities and assessing the quality of Township drinking water. It 
was decided that these workgroups should be discussed when all Commissioners are 
present.  

   
 

4. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 
None 

 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Approved by consent without objection at approximately 6:57 p.m. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MINUTES 
Meridian Municipal Building – Town Hall Room 
June 1, 2016 - Draft 
 

   
REGULAR MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Chair McConnell, Vice-Chair Schools, Commissioners Sarver, Dickmann, Jackson 

and Kielbaso 
        
ABSENT: Commissioner Masten 
 
STAFF: Harmony Gmazel, AICP, Associate Planner 
 
OTHERS: Members of the Public 
 
 

1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
                        Chair McConnell called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
                        Approved by consent without objection.         
 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MAY 4, 2016 SPECIAL/REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES. 

 
Approved by consent without objection. 
 

4. PUBLIC REMARKS 
   

None 
 

5. CHAIR'S REPORT 
   

Chair McConnell announced that he attended work sessions of the Planning 
Commission pertaining to the Master Plan Update. Topics of interest to the EC 
include three future areas of the township that are planned for increased density. 
Walkable connections between existing pathways, jobs, schools, homes and 
businesses are a priority. The Parks Department approached Chair McConnell 
asking for aid involving a future park improvement project. Chair McConnell invited 
the EC and members of the public to a workshop hosted by the Land Information 
Access Association on “Climate Health Adaptation Planning” on June 2nd at the 
MML offices in Lansing.  

 
6. STAFF REPORT  

   
None 

 
7. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 
Land Preservation: J. Kielbaso reported that the Board is in final negotiations on 
two properties. A small property on the south side of Lake Lansing went in front of 
the Township Board for acceptance recently. A small federal grant was awarded to 
the Board to re-establish native grasses on the 7-acre Sturk property off Hagadorn 
Rd.  Commissioner Kielbaso invited the EC and members of the public to a “seedball” 
event at the Foster-Davis Property on June 3 at 11am. Native seeds will be dispersed 



Draft_ Minutes 
Page 2 
 

across the prairie by volunteers at the event. The Land Preservation Board 
recommended Ben Holland as a potential Student Environmental Commissioner.  
 
Energy Team: J. Sarver reported that there was an Energy Team meeting in 
May. The Climate Action Plan is underway. A Consultant has been hired by the 
township to complete an energy efficiency audit of 5 Township-owned buildings. 
Commissioner Sarver invited the EC and members of the public to the Energy 
Fair being held at the Ingham County Fairgrounds on June 24 & 25. More info is 
at www.glrea.org 

 
Student Engagement: None 
 
Parks: None  

 
 

8. GREEN THEME PRESENTATION: “ A GROUNDWATER QUALITY SURVEY FOR 
INGHAM COUNTY” BY GARRY ROWE ON BEHALF OF THE INGHAM CO. BOARD 
OF HEALTH To view the presentation, visit HOMTV at this link: 
http://meridian.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=11. A follow-up presentation 
will be provided to the EC once Mr. Rowe’s research is complete over the coming year.  
 
 

9. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 

None 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn by Chair McConnell, approved by consent without objection at 
8:05 p.m.  
 

 
 



 
 
 
June 30, 2016 
Project No. G150126W09  
 
 
Ms. Harmony Gmazel 
Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 
 
Re:  Wetland Use Permit #16-03 Application Review 

Towner Road Park 
Charter Township of Meridian 

 
Dear Ms. Gmazel: 
 
Charter Township of Meridian (Township) Department of Parks and Recreation is requesting to install a timber 
boardwalk across a wetland and to drain stormwater from three detention basins to wetlands at Towner Road 
Park, 2055 Towner Road. These modifications are part of a larger project which will provide various amenities to 
the park, including walking paths, a paved plaza, pickleball courts, baseball fields, soccer fields and parking lots.  

At the request of the Township, FTCH reviewed the Wetland Use Permit (WUP) request, including a Joint Permit 
Application (JPA), dated May 17, 2016, and prepared by VIRIDIS Design Group.  

This letter provides a brief description of the resources that would be impacted by the proposed work, evaluates 
WUP Application #16-03 according to review standards in the Township Wetland Protection Ordinance 
(Article IV of Chapter 22 of the Code of Ordinances of the Charter Township of Meridian), and makes 
recommendations to the Township regarding issuance or denial of the WUP application.  

Overview of Proposed Wetland Impacts 
The proposed activities are located in Section 4, Town 4 North, Range 1 West, Ingham County, Michigan. Towner 
Road Park is located on two parcels: 
 
● Parcel Number 33‐02‐02‐04‐276‐010, 23.79 acres at 2055 Towner Road, Haslett 
● Parcel Number 33‐02‐02‐04‐276‐009, 1.58 acres at 2083 Towner Road, Haslett 

FTCH delineated four wetlands at the site in October 2015 and the results of the wetland delineation are 
provided in FTCH’s October 19, 2015 Wetland Delineation Report. Three of the delineated wetlands (A, C and E) 
are regulated by the Township, and Wetland A was determined essential in March 2016. 

The Township’s Park and Recreation Department proposes the following wetland impacts:  

● Construct an 8 foot wide, 27 foot long, timber boardwalk set on helical piers above Wetland C. The 
boardwalk is part of a paved walking path that will allow barrier-free access around the perimeter of the 
western baseball field and the two soccer fields. Piers will be driven into the ground with equipment located 
outside the wetland. Pier shafts are approximately 1.50 inches square.  



Ms. Harmony Gmazel 
Page 2 
June 30, 2016 
 
 
● Route stormwater overflow from three detention basins into Township-regulated wetlands: 

○ Basin 2 into Wetland A, a 0.43 acre, depressional wetland containing an emergent plant community, 
located at the north end of the site. The Township determined this wetland provides flood and storm 
control by its hydrologic absorption and storage capacity, wildlife habitat, and pollution treatment. 
Therefore, the Township has determined this wetland is essential and regulated by the Township. 

○ Basin 3 into Wetland C, located at the southeast end of the site and associated with Township Wetland 
4‐24 (0.92 acre) and 3‐6C (100.32 acre). In addition, overflow from Basin 1 will be discharged to Basin 3, 
and may ultimately be discharged into Wetland C. 

○ Basin 4 into Wetland E, located at the southwest end of the site. Wetland E is part of a large wetland 
complex that extends to the south (Township Wetland 4‐22). This wetland is an approximately 
47.75-acre emergent, scrub‐shrub, forested, wetland complex which contains the Costigan Drain. 

Stormwater discharge points for all three basins are located outside of the 20-foot wetland boundary buffer, as 
indicated in Exhibits H, I and J. Stormwater drainage to wetlands will not be piped, but is entirely via overflow 
spillways. 

Review of WUP Application 
The review standards used to evaluate WUP applications are found in Section 22-157 of Article IV (Wetland 
Protection) of Chapter 22 of the Township’s Code of Ordinances. WUPs are not to be issued unless the proposed 
activity is found to be in the public interest, the permit is necessary to realize the benefits from the activity, and 
the proposed activity is otherwise lawful in all respects. Section 22-157(2) lists eleven general criteria to be 
considered when evaluating whether or not a proposed activity is in the public interest. An evaluation of the 
proposed activity, according to each of the eleven criteria, is as follows: 

Section 22-157(2)(a) The relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed activity. 

● There is a high public need for the proposed park development. A map in the Township’s 2016 Parks & 
Recreation Family Fun Guide indicates there are currently no Township softball or soccer fields in the 
northwest quadrant of the Township, and limited availability in the north half of the Township. The Parks & 
Recreation Master Plan notes the lack of athletic fields in the northern portion of the Township. 

Section 22-157(2)(b) The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods to accomplish 
the expected benefits from the activity. 

● The proposed park design maximizes the extent of new park amenities while minimizing impact to site 
wetlands. The JPA states that based upon the existing grade of the site, location of the wetlands, and space 
required for the proposed field areas, the boardwalk is needed to complete a loop trail around the site in 
order to provide barrier free access to the site. If the boardwalk were eliminated, there would be a gap in 
the trail or one of the playing fields would need to be eliminated. These modifications would significantly 
reduce the usability of the site for recreational purposes. 

● The alternative to overland drainage to the wetlands is either piping the water offsite or creating an 
underground storage tank. Both of these alternatives are not practical and cost prohibitive.  

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2015\150126W09\WORK\CORR\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX 
 



Ms. Harmony Gmazel 
Page 3 
June 30, 2016 
 
 
Section 22-157(2)(c) The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects which the proposed 
activity may have on the public and private uses to which the area is suited, including the benefits the wetlands 
provide. 

● The proposed project is a suitable use for the subject site. The site is currently a Township park with no 
amenities other than open space (mowed turf) and a parking lot. The site is a former golf driving range. 

● The proposed site use fills a public need that has been identified in the Township Parks & Recreation 
Department’s Master Plan, according to Ms. Jane Greenway, Township Parks and Land Management 
Coordinator. 

● The existing site wetlands provide the following functions and values: water storage, water quality 
improvement, wildlife habitat, and aesthetic value. Construction of stormwater detention basins upgradient 
of site wetlands will also provide water quality benefits for the wetlands.  

● Soil boring, field infiltration testing, and groundwater elevation data were not provided for review as part of 
FTCH’s WUP review. Therefore, the extent that stormwater will infiltrate within the basins is not known nor 
the extent that stormwater will overflow into the wetlands. If more water enters the southern wetlands 
(Wetlands C and E) through overland flow than currently does, it is likely this water will move offsite and be 
absorbed into the large wetland complex that extends south and east of the site. Therefore, no significant 
impact to Wetlands C and E hydrology is anticipated.  

● The wetland investigation determined that subsoil within Wetland A consisted of clay loam, a poorly 
infiltrating soil. If more water enters Wetland A through overland flow than currently does, the potential 
exists that up to two feet of ponding will occur. If water levels rise to an elevation of 871 (two feet above 
Wetland A’s base elevation of 869), water will overflow into a roadside ditch along Towner Road. Therefore, 
the proposed site development has the potential of making Wetland A wetter, but would not convert 
Wetland A into a pond. 

● No other significant beneficial or detrimental effects to these functions are anticipated due to the proposed 
site improvements. 

Section 22-157(2)(d) The probable impact of each proposal in relation to the cumulative effect created by 
other existing and anticipated activities in the watershed. 

● There is no identified impact of the proposed activities contributing to a cumulative effect created by other 
existing and anticipated activities in the watershed. 

Section 22-157(2)(e) The probable impact on recognized historic, cultural, scenic, ecological, or recreational 
values and on the public health or safety, or fish or wildlife. 

● FTCH has no direct information pertaining to the site’s historic and cultural value. 

● The proposed site development will significantly positively impact the recreational value of the site, which in 
turn will positively impact public health for the Township’s community. 

● The proposed development maintains the majority of the site as mowed turf, open space, with an increase 
in impervious surface, due to construction of parking areas, a paved plaza and a walking path. Since there is 
no change in the site’s wetland plant community (other than potentially clearing trees and shrubs in the 
0.005 acre boardwalk area), no ecological impact due to the proposed site development is anticipated. 

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2015\150126W09\WORK\CORR\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX 
 



Ms. Harmony Gmazel 
Page 4 
June 30, 2016 
 
 
● Construction of four stormwater detention basins will manage the increase in stormwater drainage 

generated by the new impervious surfaces. Therefore, no increase in offsite stormwater discharge is 
anticipated, and no downgradient/downstream impact to fish or wildlife is anticipated. 

● No other impacts on recognized scenic or public safety values are apparent for the proposed activities.  

Section 22-157(2)(f) Economic value, both public and private, of the proposed land change to the general 
township area. 

● The Township will receive usage fees for sporting tournaments held at the park. In addition, tournament 
participants who travel to the Township will provide economic benefit to the Township through hotel, 
restaurant, and fuel purchases. The presence of recreational amenities within the Township also improves 
home values by contributing to the desirability of homeownership in this community. 

Section 22-157(2)(g) The size and quality of the wetland being considered. 

● The size of site wetlands is discussed in the Wetland Impact Overview section. Wetlands C and E are located 
at the edge of a large wetland complex associated with Lake Lansing. Wetland C appears to have been 
historically disturbed, due to steep grades at the northern wetland boundary. Wetlands A, C and E are of 
average quality. Wetland A consists of emergent wetland, while Wetlands C and E contain scrub-shrub 
wetland.  

● The proposed land change has minimal impact upon Wetland C. Based upon the JPA’s Exhibit E, it appears 
the deck of the boardwalk will be high enough to allow growth of herbaceous wetland plants below it. 
Woody wetland plants will need to be removed to facilitate boardwalk construction.   

Section 22-157(2)(h) The findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other 
agencies. 

● FTCH is not aware of findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other 
agencies. 

Section 22-157(2)(i) Amount of wetland remaining in the general area and proximity to a waterway. 

● An extensive wetland complex extends south and east from Wetlands C and E to Lake Lansing. The Township 
wetland map notes a series of contiguous wetlands in this area, notably Wetlands 4-22 (47.75-acres), 4-24 
(0.92 acre), 3-2A (7.69 acres), 3-2B (17.50 acres), 3-2C (3.44 acres), 3-2D (8.72 acres), 3-6B (6.43 acres), 3-6C 
(100.32 acres), and 3-6D (21.00 acres). The Costigan Drain and the Pine Lake Drain run through this wetland 
complex. The Costigan Drain discharges into the Pine Lake Drain, which discharges in Lake Lansing. 

Section 22-157(2)(j) Proximity to any waterbody. 

● Lake Lansing is located approximately 0.64 mile east of the subject property. Lake Lansing is designated as 
Wetland 3-6A (142.96 acres) on the Township wetland map.  

Section 22-157(2)(k) Extent to which upland soil erosion adjacent to the protected wetland is controlled. 

● Exhibits H, I, and J provided in the JPA indicated that silt fence will be installed approximately 20-feet from 
the wetland boundaries to protect the wetlands from upland soil erosion. 

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2015\150126W09\WORK\CORR\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX 
 



Ms. Harmony Gmazel 
Page 5 
June 30, 2016 
 
 
Recommendations 
Based upon our review of the submitted materials, it is our opinion that the proposed project meets the 
Township’s requirements for permit issuance. FTCH recommends the WUP permit be issued with the following 
conditions: 

● Implement appropriate soil erosion and sedimentation control measures during construction to ensure 
there are no impacts to wetlands outside of project activities as a result of soil erosion.  

● Removal of woody vegetation (if present) from the proposed boardwalk area must be accomplished without 
disturbing the ground surface. Trees and shrubs may not be removed by uprooting them. Cutting tree/shrub 
trunks near the ground surface and treating the cut end of the stump with an appropriate herbicide to 
prevent re-sprouting is an acceptable method of plant removal. 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist in the review of this file. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact me at 616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC. 
 
 
 
Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS 
 
pmb  
By email 
cc: Ms. Gail Oranchak, AICP – Township 
  
 

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2015\150126W09\WORK\CORR\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX 
 



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Detroit District Office
Phone: 313-226-2218, Fax: 313-226-6763
Website: www.lre.usace.army.mil

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Water Resources Division
See staff map on page iii for contact information
Website: www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page i of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

Joint Permit Application
For Work in Inland Lakes and Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands, Floodplains, Dams,

High Risk Erosion Areas and Critical Dune Areas
www.mi.gov/jointpermit

What is the purpose
of the Joint Permit
Application?

This Joint Permit Application was developed to facilitate the state and federal permit application process
administered by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE).

The Joint Permit Application is a multi-purpose application used to describe and quantify proposed
activities regulated by the DEQ and/or the USACE. This application is for those activities regulated by
the following Parts of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as
amended by the State of Michigan.

• Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams
• Part 325, Great Lakes Submerged Lands
• Part 303, Wetlands Protection
• Floodplain Regulatory Authority found in Part 31, Water Resources Protection
• Part 315, Dam Safety
• Part 323, Shorelands Protection and Management (High Risk Erosion Areas)
• Part 353, Sand Dunes Protection and Management (Critical Dune Areas)

The regulated activities are summarized in Appendix D. The statutes and rules are available at
www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

This application is also for those activities regulated by the USACE within the waters of the United
States under Section 10, Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403) and Section 404, Clean Water
Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. 1344).

Preapplication Meeting: This is an optional service available for activities proposed in inland lakes and
streams (Part 301), wetlands (Part 303), and critical dune areas (Part 353). A preapplication meeting
can answer many questions regarding whether or not a permit is required and the review process. The
application form and fee schedule are available at www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

How do I complete
the Joint Permit
Application?

An accurate and
complete application
package is required for
processing; inaccurate
or missing information
will delay processing.

There are three parts to a complete Joint Permit Application package:

1. Application Form
2. Maps and Drawings
3. Fee

Follow the checklists on the following page for each part of the application package.

When you have questions or need assistance in completing the application package refer to the
following information on our website www.mi.gov/jointpermit or you may contact the appropriate
district office, page iii, or through the website link “Who to Contact.”

• Joint Permit Application Training Manual
• EZ Guides for small projects
• Acronyms in Appendix A
• Sample drawings in Appendix B
• Minor Project and General Permit Categories in Appendix C
• Fee schedule in Appendix C
• State and Federal Authority and Penalties in Appendix D
• Glossary in Appendix E



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page ii of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

Application
Checklist

The following website
will provide township,
range, section, latitude
and longitude
information:

www.mcgi.state.mi.us
/wetlands/

www.geocoder.us

In each section check
all boxes that apply to
your project.

Show and label
property lines on the
site plan.

Label existing and
proposed contours,
dimensions, excavation
and/or fill on the site
plans and cross
sections.

Provide tables for
multiple impact areas.

1. Application Form

� Complete Sections 1 through 9 of the application form.

� An authorization letter from the property owner if someone other than the property owner is
signing the application.

� Complete those Sections 10 through 20 that apply to your project. Follow the instructions at
the beginning of each section. For additional information, the instructions for each sample
drawing in Appendix B indicate the application sections you will most likely need to complete.
Complete the application form as much as possible before adding attachments. Label each
attachment with the applicant's name.

� Stake or flag the area for site inspection including the property corners, proposed road or
driveway centerlines, and areas of proposed impacts. The site must be flagged when the
application is submitted.

2. Maps and Drawings

� All maps and drawings must be black and white, legible, reproducible, and sized to 8.5” x 11”.
Aerial photographs do not substitute for site plans. If larger drawings or blueprints are required
to show adequate detail for review, you may also submit one full size copy.

� Vicinity Map: A map to the proposed project location that includes ALL streets, roads,
intersections, highways, or cross-roads to the project. Do not assume review staff knows your
project location.

� Project Site Plan: Overhead drawings to scale or with dimensions, length and width, of the
proposed project are required. Show and label property lines on the site plan.

� Cross-section drawings are required. Provide the cross-sections and profile views to scale or
with dimensions, length, width, and height.

� Elevation data must include a description of the reference point or benchmark used and its
corresponding elevation. For projects on the Great Lakes or Section 10 Waters, elevations
must be provided in IGLD 85. For observed Great Lake water elevations in IGLD, visit the
USACE website under “water levels”. If elevations are from still water, provide the observation
date and water elevation. On inland sites, elevations can use NGVD 29, NAVD 88, a local
datum or an assumed bench mark.

� Provide descriptive photographs of the proposed work site showing vegetation if wetlands
are involved or the shoreline for shore protection projects. All photographs must be labeled
with your name and the date of the photograph, indicate what they show, and be referenced
to the site plan. Proposed activities or structure(s) may be indicated directly on the
photographs using indelible markers or ink pens. Provide aerial photographs 1:400 or larger
for major projects.

3. Fee

� Payment to the State of Michigan. Fees typically range from $50 to $4,000 depending on the
type of project. Refer to Appendix C of the application and/or visit www.mi.gov/jointpermit to
determine the appropriate fee for your project and for directions to pay by credit card or
electronic fund transfer payment.

� Applications should be sent directly to the district offices. Please refer to page iii, or refer to
www.mi.gov/jointpermit “who to contact” for address and/or phone number. Applications that
cross county boundaries should be sent to the district containing the primary work effort.

� Applications for dams regulated under Part 315 or from public agencies eligible to receive
federal and/or state transportation funding for a project involving public roadways, non-
motorized paths, airports, or related facilities should be mailed to: DEQ, WRD, P.O. BOX
30458, LANSING, MI 48909-7958.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page iii of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

Jackson

Land/Water Interface
Permitting Staff Map

Berrien Cass St. Joseph Branch

Van Buren

Kalamazoo
Kalamazoo Calhoun Jackson Washtenaw

Wayne

Hillsdale Lenawee Monroe

SE MI
Lansing

Grand Rapids

Saginaw Bay

Cadillac

Gaylord

Upper
Peninsula

Oakland Macomb

St. Clair
Lapeer

Genesee

LivingstonInghamEaton

BarryAllegan

Ottawa

Kent

Ionia Clinton
Shiawassee

Muskegon

Montcalm
Gratiot

Saginaw

Tuscola
Sanilac

Huron

Oceana Newaygo Mecosta
Isabella Midland

Bay

Mason Lake Osceola Clare Gladwin
Arenac

Manistee Wexford Missaukee

Roscommon

Ogemaw Iosco

Benzie Grand
Traverse

Kalkaska Crawford Oscoda Alcona

Leelanau

Antrim

Otsego
Montmorency

Alpena

Presque Isle
Cheboygan

Charlevoix

Emmet

Chippewa

Luce

Mackinac

SchoolcraftAlger

Delta

Marquette

Menominee

Dickinson

Baraga

Iron
Gogebic

Ontonagon

Houghton

Keweenaw

Office Location

Field/District Offices

Upper Peninsula: 906-228-4853
1504 W. Washington St., Marquette, MI 49855

Gaylord: 989-731-4920
2100 West M-32, Gaylord 49735

Cadillac: 231-775-3960
120 W. Chapin St, Cadillac 49601

Saginaw Bay: 989-894-6200
401 Ketchum Street, Suite B Bay City 48708

Grand Rapids: 616-356-0500
5th Fl. 350 Ottawa Ave NW, Grand Rapids 49503

Lansing: 517-284-6651
P.O. Box 30242, Lansing, 48909

SE Michigan: 586-753-3700
27700 Donald Court, Warren 48092

Kalamazoo: 269-567-3500
7953 Adobe Road, Kalamazoo 49009

Jackson: 517-780-7690
301 E. Louis Glick Hwy, Jackson 49201

www.mi.gov/jointpermit

District Boundary



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page iv of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Acronyms and Abbreviations........................................................................................................................................ A-1

Appendix B: Sample Drawings

1. General Instructions for all Drawings and Sample Site Location Maps.......................................................... B-1

2. Inland Lake Shore Protection................................................................................................................................B-2

3. Bulkhead/Seawall....................................................................................................................................................B-2

4. Pond Construction.................................................................................................................................................. B-3

5. Floodplain Fill...........................................................................................................................................................B-3

6. Wetland Boardwalk.................................................................................................................................................B-4

7. Dredging...................................................................................................................................................................B-4

8. Driveway Across Wetland......................................................................................................................................B-5

9. Residential Wetland Fill and Boardwalk Construction.......................................................................................B-5

10. Docks - Piers - Mooring Piles................................................................................................................................B-6

11. Beach Sanding........................................................................................................................................................ B-6

12. Pipe/Utility Crossings in a Trench.........................................................................................................................B-7

13. Pipe/Utility Crossings using Directional Bore......................................................................................................B-7

14. Bridge or Culvert (4 drawings).............................................................................................................................. B-8

15. Dam Construction................................................................................................................................................. B-12

16. Water Intake.......................................................................................................................................................... B-12

17. Great Lakes Shore Protection.............................................................................................................................B-13

18. Maintenance Dredge Channel............................................................................................................................ B-13

19. Proposed Residence in a High Risk Erosion Area...........................................................................................B-14

20. Proposed Residence in a Critical Dune Area................................................................................................... B-14

21. Marina Site Plan....................................................................................................................................................B-15

22. Outlet Pipe............................................................................................................................................................. B-16

23. Temporary Logging Road Crossing................................................................................................................... B-16

Appendix C: Fees and Categories for Minor Project and General Permit for Minor Activities...................................................C-1

Appendix D: State Authority, Federal Authority, Privacy Act Statement, and State and Federal Penalties............................ D-1

Appendix E: Glossary (listed words are italicized in the application package)............................................................................ E-1

Application status can be viewed on the Water Resources Division (WRD) website at www.deq.state.mi.us/CIWPIS. During the
application period, if any information is missing from the application or if any clarification is needed regarding materials provided,
the application is incomplete and staff will request the information from the applicant/agent by letter, email, fax or phone call. If a
complete response is not provided within 30 days, the application will be closed. Some regulatory parts allow extensions if
requested within the 30 day time frame. Once the WRD has received the information necessary for review of the project,
including a thoroughly completed application, consistent drawings that have adequate detail for review and the full application
fee, the file will be reviewed for final processing. A mailed postcard or a public notice will provide the file number and the
telephone number of the office where the application is being processed. The review time to determine if an application is
complete for processing ranges from 15 to 30 days. Technical processing times, after the application is administratively
complete, may range from 60 to 90 days. Processing times will be longer if a public hearing is held. Staff from your local
District/Field Office may visit the project site and may request additional information prior to a decision on the application.
Application fees are not refundable or transferable.

If a federal permit will also be required, a copy of the permit application will be sent to the Detroit District Office,
USACE, for processing at the federal level. Additional copies of this application form can be downloaded from the WRD
website at www.mi.gov/jointpermit or can be photocopied from the original. If you have any questions about the permitting
process or if you need to modify your application, you can contact the WRD by phone or fax at the addresses on the previous
page, or email at DEQ-WRD-jointpermit@michigan.gov.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 1 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

A
G

E
N

C
Y

U
S

E
Previous USACE File Number

D
a
te

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d DEQ File Number

USACE File Number Fee received $

Validate that all parts of this checklist are submitted with the application package. Fill out application and additional pages as needed.

All items in Sections 1 through 9 are completed.

Project-specific Sections 10 through 20 are completed.

Dimensions, volumes, and calculations are provided for all impact areas.

All information contained in the headings for the appropriate Sections (1-20) are addressed, and identified attachments (�) are included.

Map, site plan(s), cross sections; one set must be black and white on 8 ½ by 11 inch paper; photographs.

Application fee is attached.

1 Project Location Information For Latitude, Longitude, and TRS info anywhere in Michigan see www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/

Project Address (road, if no street address)

2055 Towner Rd

Zip Code

48840

Municipality
(Township/Village/City)

Meridian  Township

County

Ingham

Property Tax Identification Number(s)

33-02-02-04-276-011

Latitude

42.764346 N

Township/Range/Section (TRS)

T 4 N N or S; R 1 W E or W;

Sec 4

OR Private Claim #

Subdivision/Plat and Lot Number Longitude

- 84 4244109 W

2 Applicant and Agent Information

Owner/Applicant (individual or corporate name)

Charter Township of Meridian

Agent/Contractor (firm name and contact person)

VIRIDIS Design Group - John McCann

Mailing Address 5151 Marsh Rd Mailing Address 313 North Burdick

City Okemos State MI Zip Code 48864 City Kalamazoo State MI Zip Code 49007

Contact Phone Number

517-853-4604

Fax Contact Phone Number

269-978-5143

Fax

Email maisner@meridian.mi.us E-mail john@virdg.com

No Yes Is the applicant the sole owner of all property on which this project is to be constructed and all property involved or impacted by
this project? � If no, attach letter(s) of authorization from all property owners including the owner of the disposal site.

Property Owner’s Name (If different from applicant) Mailing Address

Contact Phone Number City State Zip Code

3 Project Description

Project Name Towner Road Park Preapplication File Number – – –P

Name of Water body Date project staked/flagged

The proposed project is on, within, or involves (check all that apply) Project Use

an inland lake (5 acres or more)

a pond (less than 5 acres)

a stream, river, ditch or drain

a legally established County Drain

Date Drain was established

a channel/canal

500 feet of an existing water body

a Great Lake or Section 10 Waters

a wetland
a 100-year floodplain

a dam

a designated high risk erosion area

a designated critical dune area

a designated environmental area

private
commercial
public/government
project is receiving federal/state

transportation funds
Wetland Restoration
other

Indicate the type of permit being applied for: General Permit Minor Project Individual (All other projects.) � See Appendix C.

Written Summary of All Proposed Activities Installation of an 8-foot wide by 27-foot long timber boardwalk set on helical piers within
wetlands. Overflow of storm water drainage from adjacent detention basins to wetland areas, drainage will not be piped, only via
overflow spillway.

Construction Sequence and Methods Silt fence installation, Topsoil strip, general earthwork and basin construction, boardwalk
construction, site restoration.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 2 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

4 Project Purpose, Use and Alternatives Attach additional sheets as necessary.

Describe the purpose of the project and its intended use; include any new development or expansion of an existing land use.

Project includes the development of a public park on a vacant unused property that was previously a golf driving range. Intended use
is to provide recreational facilities for the public including baseball, soccer, lacrosse, rugby, football, and walking trails.

Describe the alternatives considered to avoid or minimize resource impacts. Include factors such as, but to limited to, alternative locations,
project layout and design, and construction technologies. For utility crossings include alternative routes and construction methods.

The wetlands are the natural drainage areas (or low spots) for the site. Site run off is collected by detention basins before being
released into wetland area. The alternative to draining to the wetlands would be either piping water off site or creating an underground
storage tank, both of which are not practical and would be cost prohibitive. Based on the existing grade of the site, location of the
wetland, and space required for the proposed field areas, the boardwalk is needed to complete a loop trail around the site in order to
provide barrier free access to the site. The alternative to having the boardwalk cross the wetland would be to eliminate a section of the
loop trail which would create a "gap" in the trail; or to eliminate one of the fields which greatly reduces the usability of the site for its
purpose.

5 Locating Your Project Site Attach a legible black and white map with a North arrow.

Names of roads of closest intersection Towner Rd and Saginaw Highway

Directions from main intersection to the project site, with distances from the best and nearest visible landmark and water body Entry drive to the
site is about 1,000 feet east of the intersection of Towner Rd and Saginaw Highway on the south side of Towner Rd.

Description of buildings on the site (color; 1 or 2 story, other)

No buildings

Description of adjacent landmarks or buildings (address; color; etc)

How can your site be identified if there is no visible address? Asphalt drive flanked by telephone pole on east side and low shrubs on both
sides. Entry drive opens up to small parking lot. Soccer goals or other sport equiment may be visible on the site. Large metal tower is
located just west of the site.

6 Easements and Other Permits

No Yes Is there a conservation easement or other easement, deed restriction, lease, or other encumbrance upon the property?

� If yes, attach a copy. Provide copies of court orders and legal lake levels if applicable.

List all other federal, interstate, state, or local agency authorizations including required assurances for Critical Dune Area projects.

Agency Type of Approval Number Date Applied Date approved /denied Reason for denial

7 Compliance

If a permit is issued, when will the activity begin? (M/D/Y) 9/1/16 Proposed completion date (M/D/Y) 6/1/17

No Yes Has any construction activity commenced or been completed in a regulated area?

� If Yes, identify the portion(s) underway or completed on drawings or attach project specifications and give completion date(s).

No Yes Were the regulated activities conducted under a DEQ and/or USACE permit?

�If Yes, list the permit numbers

No Yes Are you aware of any unresolved violations of environmental law or litigation involving the property?

� If Yes, attach explanation.

8 Adjoining Property Owners Provide current mailing addresses. Attach additional sheets/labels for long lists.

Established Lake Board

Lake Association

Contact Person Mailing Address City State and Zip Code

List all adjoining property owners.

If you own the adjoining lot, provide the requested information for the first adjoining parcel that is not owned by you.

Property Owner’s Name Mailing Address City State and Zip Code

See attached Exhibit B



[l:~:l}u.s. Anny Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit Dl'1 

g Applicant's Certification Read carefully before signing. 

I am applying for a permit(s) to authorize the activities described herein. I certify that I am familiar with the information contained in this 
application; that it is true and accurate; and, to the best of my knowledge, that it is in compliance with the State Coastal Zone Management 
Program. I understand that there are penalties for submitting false information and that any permit issued pursuant to this application may be 
revoked if information on this application is untrue. J certify that J have the authority to undertake the activities proposed in this application. By 
signing this application, I agree to allow representatives of the DEQ, USAGE, and/or their agents or contractors to enter upon said property in 
order to inspect the proposed activity site before and during construction and after the completion of the project. I understand that I must obtain 
all other necessary local, county, state, or federal permits and that the granting of other permits by local, county, state, or federal agencies does 
not release me from the requirements of obtaining the permit requested herein before commencing the activity. I understand that the payment 
of the a lication fee does not uarantee the issuance of a ermit. 

Property Owner Printed Name 

Agent/Contractor John Mccann 

Corp. or Public Agency / Title 

Joint Permit Application Page3 of 14 

Date 

5117116 

EOP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013) 



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 4 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

10 Projects Impacting Inland Lakes, Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands or Floodplains

• Complete only those sections A through M applicable to your project.

• If your project impacts wetlands also complete Section 12. If your project impacts regulated floodplains also complete Section 13.

• To calculate volume in cubic yards (cu yd), multiply the average length in feet (ft) times the average width (ft) times the average depth (ft)
and divide by 27. Example: (25 ft long x 10 ft wide x 2 feet deep) / 27 = 18.5 cubic yards

• Some projects on the Great Lakes require an application for conveyance prior to Joint Permit Application completeness.

�Provide a black and white overall site plan, with cross-section and profile drawings. Show existing lakes, streams, wetlands, and other water
features; existing structures; and the location of all proposed structures, land change activities and soil erosion and sedimentation control
measures. Review Appendix B and EZ Guides for aid in providing complete site-specific drawings.

�Provide tables for multiple impact areas or multiple activities such as multiple fill areas or multiple culverts. Include your calculations.

Water Level Elevation

On inland waters NGVD 29 NAVD 88 other Observed water elevation (ft) date of observation (M/D/Y)

On a Great Lake IGLD 85 surveyed converted from observed still water elevation.

A. PROJECTS REQUIRING FILL (See All Sample Drawings)

�Attach a site plan and cross-section views to scale showing maximum and average fill dimensions with calculations.
� For multiple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each fill area.

Purpose bioengineered shore protection boat ramp boat well bridge or culvert crib dock

riprap seawall swim area other

Dimensions of fill (ft)

Length Width Maximum Depth

Total volume (cubic yards) Volume below OHWM (cubic yards)

Maximum water depth in fill area (ft) Area filled (sq ft)
Will filter fabric be used under proposed fill?

No Yes (If Yes, type)

Fill will extend feet into the water from the shoreline and upland feet out of the water.

Type of clean fill peastone % sand % gravel % other

Source of clean fill commercial on-site � If on-site, show location on site plan.
other � If other, attach description of location.

B. PROJECTS REQUIRING DREDGING OR EXCAVATION (See Sample Drawings)

• Refer to www.mi.gov/jointpermit for spoils disposal and authorization requirements.

�Attach a site plan and cross-section views to scale showing maximum and average dredge or excavation dimensions with calculations.

�For multiple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each dredge/excavation area.

Purpose boat ramp boat well bridge or culvert maintenance dredge

navigation pond/basin other

Dimensions (ft)

Length Width Maximum Depth

Total volume (cu yds) Volume below OHWM (cu yds)

Has this same area been previously dredged? No Yes If Yes, provide date and permit number:

Will the previously dredged area be enlarged? No Yes If Yes, when and how much?

Is long-term maintenance dredging planned? No Yes If Yes, how often?

Dredge or Excavation Method Hydraulic Mechanical other

S
p
o
ils

D
is

p
o
s
a
l

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed on-site landfill USACE confined disposal facility other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a �Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

�Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

For volumes less than 5,000 cu yards, has proposed dredge material been tested for contaminants within the past 10 years?

No Yes �If Yes, provide test results with a map of sampling locations.

C. PROJECTS REQUIRING RIPRAP (See Sample Drawings 2, 3, 8, 12, 14, 22, and 23)

Riprap water ward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ft) length width depth Volume(cu yd)

Riprap landward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ft) length width depth Volume(cu yd)

Type and size of riprap (inches)

field stone angular rock other

Will filter fabric or pea stone be used under proposed riprap?

No Yes, Type



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 5 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

D. SHORE PROTECTION PROJECTS (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 2, 3, and 17. Complete Sections 10A, B, and/or C.)

� For bioengineering projects include the list of native plants/seeds, if available.

Type and length (ft) bioengineering (ft) revetment (ft) riprap (ft) seawall/bulkhead (ft)

Structure is new repair replacement of an existing structure Will the existing structure be removed? No Yes

Proposed Toe Stone (linear feet) Distance of project from adjacent property lines (ft)

Distance of project from an obvious fixed structure (example - 50 ft from SW corner of house)

For bioengineering projects indicate the structure type brush bundles coir log live stakes tree revetment other

E. DOCK - PIER – MOORING PILINGS (See Sample Drawing 10)

�Attach a copy of the property legal description, mortgage survey, or a property boundary survey report.

Dock Type open pile filled crib floating cantilevered spring piles piling clusters other

Is the structure within the applicant’s riparian area interest area? No Yes �Show parcel property lines on the site plan.

Proposed structure dimensions (ft) length width Use private public commercial

Dimensions of nearest adjacent structures (ft) length width Distance of dock from adjacent property lines (ft)

F. BOAT WELL (See EZ Guide. Complete Sections 10A and 10B)

Dimensions (ft) length width depth Number of boats

Type of sidewall stabilization concrete riprap steel vinyl wood other

Volume of backfill behind sidewall stabilization (cu yd) Distance of boat well from adjacent property lines (ft)

G. BOAT RAMP (See EZ Guide. Complete sections 10A, 10B, and 10C for mattress and pavement fill, dredge, and riprap)

Type new existing maintenance/improvement Use private public commercial

Existing overall boat ramp dimensions (ft)

length width depth

Type of construction material

concrete wood stone other

Proposed overall ramp dimensions (ft)

length width depth

Proposed ramp dimensions (ft) below ordinary high water mark

length width depth

Number of proposed
skid piers

Proposed skid pier dimensions (ft)

length width
Distance of ramp from adjacent property lines (ft)

H. BOAT HOIST – ROOFS (See EZ Guide)

Type cradle side lifter other Located on seawall dock bottomlands

Hoist dimensions, including catwalks (ft) length width

Area occupied, including cat walks (sq ft) Distance of hoist from adjacent property lines (ft)

Permanent Roof No Yes

� If Yes, how is the roof supported?

Maximum Roof Dimensions (ft): length width height

I. BOARDWALKS and DECKS in WETLANDS or FLOODPLAINS (See Sample Drawings 5 and 6. Complete Sections 12 and/or 13)

�Provide a table for multiple boardwalks and decks proposed in one project; include locations and dimensions.

Wetlands Floodplains

Boardwalk on pilings on fill

Dimensions (ft)

length 27' width 8'

Deck on pilings on fill

Dimensions (ft)

length width

Boardwalk on pilings on fill

Dimensions (ft)

length width

Deck on pilings on fill

Dimensions (ft)

length width

J. INTAKE PIPES (See Sample Drawing 16) or OUTLET PIPES (See Sample Drawing 22)

If outlet pipe, discharge is to inland lake stream, drain or river overland flow Great Lake wetland other

Number of pipes Pipe diameters and invert elevations Does pipe discharge below the OHWM? No Yes

Is the water treated before discharge? No Yes

Type headwall end section other

Dimensions of headwall OR end section (ft)

length width height



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 6 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

K. MOORING and NAVIGATION BUOYS (See EZ Guide for Sample Drawing)

�Provide a site plan showing the distances between each buoy and from the shore to each buoy, and depth (ft) of water at each location.
�Provide cross-section drawing(s) showing anchoring system(s) and dimensions.

Purpose of buoy mooring navigation scientific structures swimming other

Number of
buoys

Dimensions of buoys (ft)

width height swing radius chain length

Boat Lengths Type of anchor system

Buoy Location: Latitude . N Longitude -- . W. � Provide a table for multiple buoys.

Do you own the property along the shoreline? No Yes � If No, attach an authorization letter from the property owner(s).

Do you own the bottomlands? No Yes � If No, attach an authorization letter from the property owner(s).

L. FENCES

�Provide an overall site plan showing the proposed fencing through streams, wetlands or floodplains.

�Provide a drawing of fence profile showing the design, dimension, post spacing, mesh, and distance from ground to bottom of fence.

Purpose of
fence

Airport Cervidae Livestock Residential Security Other

Total length (ft) of fence through

streams wetlands floodplains

Fence height (ft) Fence type and material

M. OTHER - e.g., structure removal, maintenance or repair, aerator, dry fire hydrant, gold prospecting, habitat structures, scientific measuring
devices, soil borings, or survey activities.

Structure description, dimensions and volumes. Complete Sections 10A-C as applicable.

11 Expansion of an Existing or Construction of a New Lake or Pond (See Sample Drawings 4 and 15)

�Complete Section 10J for outlets and Section 17 for water control structures.

�Provide elevations, cross-sections and profiles of outlets, dams, dikes, water control structures and emergency spillways to nearest water
bodies.

Which best describes your proposed water body use (check all that apply)

mining recreation storm water retention basin wastewater basin wildlife other

Water source for lake/pond

groundwater natural springs Inland Lake or Stream storm water runoff pump sewage other

Location of the lake/basin/pond floodplain wetland stream (inline) upland

Maximum dimensions (ft)

length width depth
Maximum Area: acres sq ft

Has the there been a hydrologic study performed on the site? No Yes � If Yes, provide a copy.

Has the DEQ conducted a wetland assessment for this parcel? No Yes

� If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:

Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? No Yes

� If Yes, provide a copy with data sheets.

S
p
o
ils

D
is

p
o
s
a
l

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed on-site landfill USACE confined disposal facility other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a �Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

�Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 7 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

12 Activities That May Impact Wetlands (See Sample Drawings 8 & 9). Complete other Sections as applicable.

• Locate your site and wetland information with the DEQ Wetlands Map Viewer at www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/

• For information on the DEQ’s Wetland Identification Program (WIP) visit www.mi.gov/wetlands.

�Provide a detailed site plan with labeled property lines, upland and wetland areas, and dimensions and volumes of wetland impacts.

�Complete the wetland dredge and wetland fill dimension information below for each impacted wetland area.

�Attach tables for multiple impact areas or activities.

�Attach at least one cross-section for each wetland dredge and/or fill area; show wetland and upland boundaries on the cross-section.

Has the DEQ conducted a wetland assessment for this parcel? No Yes � If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:

Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? No Yes � If Yes, provide a copy with data sheets

Is there a recorded DEQ easement on the property? No Yes � If Yes, provide the easement number

Did the applicant purchase the property before October 1, 1980? No Yes � If Yes, provide documentation.

Is any grading or mechanized land clearing proposed? No Yes � If Yes, label the locations on the site plan.

Has any of the proposed grading or mechanized land clearing been
completed?

No Yes � If Yes, label the locations on the site plan

Proposed Activity boardwalk or deck (Section 10I) bridges and culverts
(Section 14)

designated environmental area

dewatering draining surface water driveway / road

fences (Section 10L) fill or dredge restoration

septic system stormwater discharge
(Section 10J)

other

FILL

Dimensions

maximum length (ft)

maximum width (ft)

Area

acres sq ft

Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)

no fill proposed

DREDGE

Dimensions

maximum length (ft)

maximum width (ft)

Area

acres sq ft

Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)

no dredge
proposed

S
p
o
ils

D
is

p
o
s
a
l Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed on-site landfill USACE confined disposal facility other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a � Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

� Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

S
e
p

ti
c

S
y
s
te

m The proposed project will be serviced by:

public sewer private septic system

� Show system on plans.

If a private septic system is proposed, has an application for a permit been made to
the County Health Department? No Yes

If Yes, has a permit been issued? No Yes � Provide a copy of the permit.

Describe the wetland impacts, the proposed use or development, and the alternatives considered:

Proposed development includes a public park with athletic fields and walking paths. Impacts include the following: 1) building a 8 foot
by 27 foot timber boardwalk set on helical piers above the wetland, piers are driven into the ground with equipment that sit outside the
wetland, pier shafts are approx. 1.5-inches square. 2) stormwater overflow drainage to wetland areas. No drainage is conveyed to
wetland by pipe. All drainage to wetlands is overflow from detention basins, therefore all drainage to wetlands will be detained in a
basin prior to flowing into wetland. A large portion of drainage is from green space and athletic fields. The existing weltand areas are
the natural low areas that the site is currently draining to.

Does the project impact more than 1/3 acre of wetland? No Yes

� If Yes, submit a Mitigation Plan with the type and amount of mitigation proposed. For more information go to www.mi.gov/wetlands

Describe how impacts to waters of the United States will be avoided and minimized:

Waters of the UnitesStates will not be impacted.

Describe how the impact to waters of the United States will be compensated. OR Explain why compensatory mitigation should not be required
for the proposed impacts.
Waters of the United States will not be impacted.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 8 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 9 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

13 Floodplain Activities (See Sample Drawing 5 and others. Complete other applicable sections.)

• For more information go to www.mi.gov/floodplainmanagement. This site also lists the projects and requirements for an expedited floodplain
review under “Expedited Review Information for Minor Floodplain Projects.”

• Examples of projects proposed within the non-floodway portions of the 100-year-floodplain which may qualify for an expedited review: Open
pile decks and boardwalks; residences, commercial/industrial facilities, garages and accessory structures; parking lots; pavilions, gazebos,
large community playground structures; residential swimming pools

• Examples of projects proposed within the floodway portions of the floodplain which may qualify for an expedited review: Open pile decks and
boardwalks, (non-enclosed) that are anchored to prevent floatation and that do not extend over the bed and bank of a watercourse; parking
lots constructed at grade or resurfacing that is no more than 4 inches above the existing grade; dry hydrants that do not require fill
placement; scientific structure such as staff gauges, water monitoring devices, water quality testing devices, and core sampling devices
which meet specific design criteria and fish structures that meet specific design criteria.

• For expedited review include:

� Photographs of the work site labeled to identify what is being shown and with the direction of the photo clearly indicated. Include
photographs of any river or stream adjacent to the project.

� A letter or statement from the local unit of government acknowledging your proposed application. See the website for sample wording.

• A hydraulic analysis or hydrologic analysis may be required to fully assess floodplain impacts.

• The state building code requires an Elevation Certificate for any building construction or addition in a floodplain. A sample form can be found at
www.fema.gov/nfip/elvinst.shtm.

�Attach additional sheets or tables for multiple proposed floodplain activities and provide hydraulic calculations.

�Show reference datum used on plans.

Proposed Activity fill excavation or cut 100-year floodplain elevation (ft) (if known)

Datum NGVD 29 NAVD 88 otherother

Site is feet above ordinary high water mark (OHWM) OR observed water level. Date of observation (M/D/Y)

Fill volume below the 100-year floodplain elevation

(cu yds)

Compensating cut volume below the 100-year floodplain elevation

(cu yds)

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
a
n

d
/o

r
A

d
d

it
io

n
s

Type of construction is residential garage/pole barn non residential other

Construction is new addition AND Serviced by public sewer private septic other

Lowest adjacent grade (ft): existing proposed

datum NGVD 29 NAVD 88 other

Existing Structure Information Proposed Structure Information

Foundation type basement Foundation type basement

concrete slab on grade pilings concrete slab on grade pilings

crawl space other crawl space other

Foundation floor elevation (ft) Foundation floor elevation (ft)

Height of crawl space/basement from finished foundation floor to
bottom of floor joists (ft)

Height of crawl space/basement from finished foundation floor to
bottom of floor joists (ft)

Elevation of 1st floor above basement floor/crawl space (ft) Elevation of 1st floor above basement floor/crawl space (ft)

For enclosed areas below the flood elevation, such as a crawl space, garages and accessory structures:

Area of proposed foundation (sq ft)

Elevation of proposed enclosed area (ft) datum NGVD 29 NAVD 88 other

Number of flood vents net opening of each vent (sq inches) lowest elevation of flood vents (ft)



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 10 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

14 Bridges and Culverts Including Foot and Cart Bridges. (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 5, 14A, 14B, 14C, 14D.)

• Complete other applicable Sections, including 10A-C.

• A hydraulic analysis or hydrologic analysis may be required to fully assess impacts. �Attach hydraulic calculations.

• High Water Elevation - describe reference point and highest known water level above or below reference point and date of observation.

�Attach additional sheets for multiple bridges and/or culverts.

�Provide detailed site-specific drawings of existing and proposed Plan and Elevation View at a scale adequate for detailed review.

�Provide all information in the boxes below; do not write in a reference to plan sheets. Show reference datum used on plans.

S
tr

e
a
m

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

The site has a high water elevation (ft) above or below the Reference Point of Date observed

Reference datum used NGVD 29 NAVD 88 IGLD 85 (Great Lakes coastal areas) other

Average stream width (ft) at the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) outside the influence of
any ponding or scour holes around the structure

Upstream

Downstream

Cross-sectional area of primary channel (sq ft) (See Sample Drawing 14C for more information)

The width of the stream where the water begins to overflow its banks. Bankfull width (ft)

The invert of the stream 100-feet from structure (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Is the existing culvert perched? No Yes If Yes, provide a profile of the channel bottom at the high and low points for a distance of
200 feet upstream and downstream of the culvert.

Complete this form for each bridge / culvert location. Existing Proposed

B
ri

d
g

e

Number of bridge spans

Bridge type (concrete box beam, concrete I-beam, timber, etc.)

Bridge span ( length perpendicular to stream) (ft)

Bridge width (parallel to stream) (ft)

Bottom of bridge beam (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Stream invert elevation at bridge (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Bridge rise from bottom of beam to streambed (ft)

C
u

lv
e
rt

Number of culverts

Culvert type (arch, bottomless, box, circular, elliptical, etc.)

Culvert material (concrete, corrugated metal, plastic, etc.)

Culvert length (ft)

Culvert width diameter (ft)

Culvert height prior to any burying (ft)

Depth culvert will be buried (ft)

Elevation of culvert crown (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Higher elevation of culvert invert OR streambed within culvert (ft) Upstream

Downstream

C
o

m
p

le
te

fo
r

b
o

th
B

ri
d

g
e
s

a
n

d
C

u
lv

e
rt

s

Entrance design (mitered, projecting, wingwalls, etc.)

Total structure waterway opening above streambed (sq ft)

Total structure waterway area below the 100-year elevation (sq ft) (if known)

Elevation of road grade at structure (ft)

Elevation of low point in road (ft)

Distance from low point of road to mid-point of bridge crossing (ft)

Length of approach fill from edge of bridge/culvert to existing grade (ft)

A Licensed Professional Engineer may certify that your project will not cause a harmful interference for a range of flood discharges up to
and including the 100-year flood discharge. The "Required Certification Language” is found under “forms” on the “maps, forms and
documents” link from the www.mi.gov/jointpermit page or a copy may be requested by phone, email, or mail. A hydraulic report
supporting this certification may also be required.

Is Certification Language attached? No Yes



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 11 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

15 Stream, River, or Drain Construction , Relocation and Enclosure Activities

• Complete Section 10C for riprap activities.

• If side casting or other proposed activities will impact wetlands or floodplains, complete Sections 12 and 13, respectively.

�Provide a scaled overall site plan showing existing lakes, streams, wetlands, and other water features; existing structures; and the location of
all proposed structures and land change activities.

�Provide scaled cross-section (elevation) drawings necessary to clearly show existing and proposed conditions.

�For activities on legally established county drains, provide original design and proposed dimensions and elevations.

S
tr

e
a
m

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n Water elevation (ft) datum NGVD 29 NAVD 88 IGLD 85 (Great Lakes coastal areas) other

� Show elevation on plans with description.

Dimensions (ft) of existing stream/drain channel (ft) length width depth

Existing channel average water depth in a normal year (ft)

Proposed Activity enclosure improvement maintenance new drain relocation wetlands other

If an enclosed structure is proposed, check material type concrete corrugated metal plastic other

Dimensions (ft) of the structure: diameter length Volume of fill (cu yds)

Will old/enclosed stream channel be backfilled to top of bank grade? No Yes

Length of channel to be abandoned (ft) Volume of fill (cu yds)

Dimensions (ft) of improved, maintained, new, relocated or wetland stream/drain
channel.

length width depth

Volume of dredge/excavation (cu yds)

How will slopes and bottom be stabilized? Proposed side slopes (vertical / horizontal)

S
p
o

ils
D

is
p
o
s
a
l

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed on-site landfill USACE confined disposal facility other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a � Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

� Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

16 Drawdown of an Impoundment

• If wetlands will be impacted, complete Section 12.

Type of drawdown over winter temporary one-time event annual event permanent (dam removal) other

Reason for drawdown

Has there been a previous drawdown? No Yes

If Yes, provide date (M/D/Y)

Previous DEQ permit number, if known

Does waterbody have established legal lake level? No Yes Not Sure
Dam ID Number, if known

Extent of vertical drawdown (ft) Impoundment design head (ft) Number of adjoining or
impacted property owners

Date drawdown would start (M/D/Y) Date drawdown would stop (M/D/Y) Rate of drawdown ( ft/day)

Date refilling would start (M/D/Y) Date refill would end (M/D/Y) Rate of refill (ft/day)

Type of outlet discharge structure to be used
surface bottom mid-depth

Impoundment area at
normal water level (acres)

Sediment depth behind impoundment
discharge structure (ft)



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 12 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

17 Dam, Embankment, Dike, Spillway, or Control Structure Activities (See Sample Drawing 15)

• For more information go to www.mi.gov/damsafety. If wetlands will be impacted, complete Section 12.

• Information on removing a dam is available at www.mi.gov/damsafety and following the Related Link –Dam Management.

��Attach detailed signed and sealed engineering plans for a Part 315 dam repair, dam alteration, dam abandonment, or dam removal.

�Part 315 Dam Safety application fees are added to all other application fees.

�Mail applications for dams regulated under Part 315 to DEQ, WRD, P.O. BOX 30458, LANSING, MI 48909-7958, attention Dam Safety.

Proposed Activity abandonment alteration enlargement of an existing dam

removal repair reconstruction of a failed dam

new dam construction other

Dam ID Number, if known
Type of outlet discharge structure surface bottom mid-depth

Will proposed activities require a drawdown of the waterbody to complete the work? No Yes � If Yes, complete Section 16.

Structural height (difference between embankment top elevation and streambed elevation at downstream embankment toe) (ft) ______

Hydraulic Height (difference between design flood elevation and streambed
elevation at downstream embankment toe) (ft) ______

Impoundment size at design flood elevation (acres)

Does dam meet the criteria for regulation under Part 315? (i.e. hydraulic height of 6 feet or more and an impoundment size at the design flood of 5
surface acres or more) No Yes

Dredging/excavation volume (cu yd) Fill volume (cu yd) Riprap volume (cu yd)

Will a water diversion during construction be required? No Yes

If Yes, describe how the stream flow will be controlled through the dam construction area during the proposed project activities:

Complete the following for a new dam, reconstruction of a failed dam or enlargement of an existing dam

For Part 315 regulated dams, the following must be attached:
� Site-specific conceptual plans of the dam for resource impact review (An engineering report and detailed engineering plans are not required
until the project has been determined to be permitable).
� A description and evaluation of the loss of natural resources associated with the project.
� A description of the natural resources that are associated with or created by the impoundment and how they offset the natural resources lost by
the creation of the impoundment.
� An assessment of all known existing and potential adverse effects within the scope of the project.

Embankment
dimensions

length (ft) top width (ft) bottom width (ft)
slopes Upstream
(vertical / horizontal) Downstream

Have soil borings been taken at dam location? No Yes � If Yes, attach results.

Do you have flowage rights to all proposed flooded property at
the design flood elevation?

No Yes
� If No, provide a letter of authorization from the property
owner.

Applications for Part 315 regulated dam removal projects must also include the following:

An evaluation of the capacity of the remaining structure to pass flood flows.
An evaluation of the quantity and quality of the sediments behind the impoundment.
A description of the methods to be employed to control sediments.
An assessment of all known existing and potential adverse impacts within the scope of the project.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 13 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

18 Utility Crossings (See Sample Drawings 12 and 13, and EZ Guide)

• If side casting is proposed, complete Sections 10A and 10B. If spoils will be placed in or impact wetlands, complete Section 12.

�Attach additional sheets or tables with the requested information as needed for multiple crossings.

�For wetland crossings using the open trench method show clay plugs at the wetland/upland boundaries on the plans.

Crossing of Inland Lake or Stream floodplain Great Lake wetlands (also complete Section 12)

What method will be used to construct the crossings? directional boring jack and bore open trench plow / knife flume

Utility Type
Number of lake or
stream crossings

Number of wetland
crossings

Pipe diameter
with casing (in)

Pipe length per
crossing (ft)

Distance below
streambed or wetland (in)

Trench width
(ft)

sanitary sewer

storm sewer

watermain

cable

electric

fiber optic cable

oil/gas pipeline

19 Marina Construction, Expansion and Reconfiguration (See Sample Drawing 21)

• For more information go to www.mi.gov/marinas

• Marinas located on the Great Lakes, including Lake St. Clair, may be required to secure leases or conveyances from the state of Michigan to
place structures on the bottomlands. If a conveyance is necessary, an application must be submitted before the Joint Permit Application can be
determined complete.

�Fully complete Section 10 E. For multiple structures provide a table with the requested information.

�Enclose a copy of any current pump-out agreement with another marina facility, if on-site sanitary pump out facilities are not available.

�Attach a copy of the property legal description, mortgage survey, or a property boundary survey to your application.

� The WRD may require a riparian interest area (RIA) estimate survey, sealed by a licensed surveyor, in order to determine whether the
proposed project will adversely impact riparian rights. Include any available sealed RIA estimate survey and/or written authorizations from
affected adjoining riparian owners with your application.

Proposed Marina Activity New construction Expansion Reconfiguration

Do you have an existing Great Lake Conveyance? No Yes For more information visit www.mi.gov/deqgreatlakes.

Are sanitary pump-out facilities available? No Yes Is there a pump out agreement? No Yes If Yes, provide a copy.

Marina Description Current Count Final Count

Number of boat slips/wells (do not include broadside dockage or mooring buoys)

Lineal feet of broadside dockage

Maximum number of boats at broadside dockage

Number of mooring buoys

Number of launch ramps/lanes



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 14 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

20 Critical Dune Areas and High Risk Erosion Areas (See Sample Drawings 19 and 20)

Critical Dune Areas (See Sample Drawing 20)

• Although not required, submitting PHOTOGRAPHS of the site may provide for a faster application review.

• For more information go to www.mi.gov/jointpermit, select “Sand Dune Protection” under “Related Links.”
• All property boundaries and proposed structure corners, including decks, septic systems, water wells, driveways, grading, and terrain alteration

locations must be staked before the WRD site inspection.
• Scaled overhead and cross-section plans must include all property boundaries, locations, and dimensions of all existing structures and impacted

areas, and all proposed structures, terrain alterations, and construction access. Cross-sections must show existing and proposed grades,
including foundations.

• Construction in critical dune areas on slopes greater than 33 percent (1 vertical: 3 horizontal) is prohibited without a special exception.
• Construction in critical dune areas on slopes that measure from 25 percent (1 vertical: 4 horizontal) to less than 33 percent requires sealed plans

prepared by a registered architect or licensed professional engineer.

High Risk Erosion Areas (See Sample Drawing 19)

• For more information go to www.mi.gov/jointpermit, select “HREA” under “Related Links.”
• All property boundaries, proposed structure corners, and septic system locations must be staked before the WRD site inspection.
• Scaled overhead plans must include all property boundaries, and the location and dimensions of all structures and septic systems must be

included.
• Additional information, including the building construction plans, may be required to complete the application review.

C
ri

ti
c
a
l

D
u

n
e

A
re

a
s

Parcel dimensions (ft) width depth Date project staked (M/D/Y)

Property is a platted lot unplatted parcel Year current property boundaries created

Dune habitat present in Building Site and access route (check all that apply): Wooded Open Dune Shrubs
Bare Sand Lakefront Lot MNFI Community if known:________________

Type of construction activities addition driveway garage new home renovation septic deck(s) other

Provide a sand relocation plan with location and dimensions of disposal area. Indicate on-site OR off-site

If on-site show location and how the disposal site will be accessed on the plans. Indicate the depth of the disposed sand on the plans.

Provide the permit or letter from the County Enforcing Agent stating the project complies with Part 91 (Soil Erosion and Sedimentation
Control).

The proposed project will be serviced by public sewer private septic system.

� On the plans, show the location and dimensions of the private septic system.

If a private septic system is proposed, has a permit been issued by the health department? No Yes

� If Yes, provide a copy of the permit for all Critical Dune Area projects.

Provide a copy of the vegetation assurance letter.

Provide a re-vegetation plan, including #________ of trees to be removed and #_______ of trees to be replanted.

Proposed Utility Installation Proposed New Construction

Utility Installation Method Foundation type basement

directional bore plowing in concrete slab pilings

open trench other crawl space other

�Show utility locations and dimensions on the site plan. Area of existing structure (sq ft)

�Show construction access route on the site plan. Area of proposed structure (sq ft)

�Show existing and proposed grades on the cross-section. Area of existing deck (sq ft)

�Show locations of vegetation to be removed on the site plan. Area of proposed deck (sq ft)

Provide the following information for special use projects:
(a) Lot size, width, density, and front and side setbacks.
(b) Storm water drainage that provides for disposal of drainage water without serious erosion.
(c) Methods for controlling erosion from wind and water.
(d) Re-stabilization plan.

(e) Environmental Impact Statement.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

Joint Permit Application Page 15 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

H
ig

h
R

is
k

E
ro

s
io

n
A

re
a
s

Parcel dimensions (ft) width depth Date project staked (M/D/Y)

Existing Structure Information Proposed New Construction

Foundation type basement Foundation type basement

concrete slab pilings concrete slab pilings

crawl space other crawl space other

Material above foundation wall Material above foundation wall

block log stud frame other block log stud frame other

Siding material Siding material

block vinyl wood other block vinyl wood other

Area of the foundation, excluding attached garage (sq ft) Area of the foundation, excluding attached garage (sq ft)

Area of the garage foundation (sq ft) Area of the garage foundation (sq ft)

If renovating or restoring an existing structure, indicate the renovation or restoration cost $

Current structure replacement value $

Tax assessed value of existing structure excluding land value $ Assessment Year

Provide the number of individual living units in the proposed building



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIA N 

Elizabeth Ann LeGoff Supervisor 
Brett Dreyfu s Clerk 
Ju lie Brixie Treasurer 
Frank L. Walsh Manager 

February 15, 2016 

MDEQ-WRD 
Lansing District Office 

Constitution Hall 1st Floor South 
Tower 525 W. Allegan Street 
P. 0. Box 30242 
Lansing, Ml 48909 

RE: TOWNER ROAD PARK 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Ml 
Parcel No. 33-02-02-04-276-011 

Dear MDEQ Staff: 

Milton L. Scales Trustee 
Ronald J . Styka Trustee 
John Veenstra Trustee 
Angela Wi lson Trustee 

Please consider this letter my authorization for John Mccann, Viridis Design Group, to 
submit a Joint Permit Application for improvements to the Towner Road Park, located 
in Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. The improvements involve the 
installation of a wood pedestrian bridge that will be utilized to cross a small wetland. 

Should you have any questions, please contact me at 517-853-4604 or 
maisner@meridian.mi.us. 

Yours truly, 

LuAnn Maisner, CPRP 
Director of Parks and Recreation 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MICHIGAN 48864-1198 (517) 853-4000 
www.meridian.mi.us 



Page 1 of 1InghamParcelViewer

5/18/2016http://ingham-equalization.rsgis.msu.edu/InghamParcelViewer.aspx

Ingham Coun_ty,, ~qualizati~l)/Tax Map~ing 

Br0 
J:: 
l:? 

.,...__.~ ............ ~ ~ ~~~ __,_...~ ------------ I 
°\.ew D; 

Pine fl, 

"' !i: 

... (j, 
0 

Aslroi' 

0 Map Layers 

I Parcels"' 

~ Cities 

'O 

"' 
Rom/Parle ] 

L!nsing Rd 

Ha"ison 
Meadows POik 

N"'thlawnA~ 

.D 
< 

~ 
] 
.0 
< 

'O 

"' I 
~ 

t 
~ 

W)l~ehm1Dr 

~ 
VI 

Ive Eiist Lansing 

a 
:~ 
0 

•ga\l J>.~e 
~ 

f Gtilne1 Ii, · 
lltet 4v$ 

5 
~ 

Biber St .. 
.'( 

f 
:z: 

Q 
g. 

i .¥ 

/i 
• . ~ 
0 
J: 

WalrotHills 
Country 

Club 

Colony Dr 

'O 

"' " "' .. 
--' 

t 
t 

~ C,\ 

; l tSa~ifla'll 

;i: 

"ll 
0: 

§ <J 
<( -If 

li 
wr1l 

" E • (( 0 

Burcham Dr ., .., 
Bul"Cham Dr 

C i 
-~ I 

> 

~ Beedi St VI i;/)qen St 
0: 

• Ann St .. 
~ 

f<,"' I l'/rj f?: 
'"E'r4 

~E' 

GD 

r\ I Gf"ilnrttJ1. 

,;i' 

.§ 
.:, 
"' l 

~,~ 

'O 

"' II 

"' 3 
"'-
~ 

GD 
~ 

.I 
§i 
~ 

(i, 

~ 

~ 
E 
~ 

Lake tansing Rd 

Raby Rd 

-·~ 
't I 

~' 
'hamO' f 

cS" 
"' ~ 1idden.J" 

1sa,c.\.l' 

-o Lake D 
a: 
~ the 
j Hill, 
o Golf 

(OU/le 

Raby Rd 

,, 
"' .. 
0 

] 

Towner Rd 

O> g. 

\ 

J 
• C 

~ 

I 

' \~ 
•ii:, 

Crest St 

l 
" 

t 
~ 
i. 

Lake L!nsing Rd 

"!! i ~ :) 

"' ~ C) 

e 
~ 
;c 

Haslett 

Haslett Rd 

Raby R~ 

,,,.. 
i: . 
GI 

~(\l· u! ::r 
t'•\f'dl-e ~ 

. 

f1i 

\ 
16J,9(1 

("(~ 
lff,4 

Clear Selection 

[ake [ansing 

' .,; 

5 
l~.f~ t:' 

,Jc 
Q 

• 

.u 

.0 

" "' .., 
~ 
\n~inRd 

,, 

Meridian Sun Golf ~ 
Club / 

CliffdaloOt 

(§ 

,$: 
~~ 

1l',tcl 

~ 
g 
(( 

Hasl!tt 

0 
p;cadilly ~ " > 1 

8 
• Nancy L Moon> Parle 

Centrn/ Pork 
South Centm/Pork 

./Parl<o, 
(.) 

St~.,,. 

Meridian 

"'«dlso<'f've 

i· 
8 
~ o, 

~ 

J Tihart Rd 

1 Miles 

© 2010 NAVTEQ © AND © 2016 Mbsoft Corporation; 
(( !l 
a C 

John McCann
Typewritten Text
LOCATION MAP

John McCann
Oval

John McCann
Typewritten Text
SITE



V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

N
o

t 
to

 S
c

a
le

NEWTON RD

SA
G

IN
A

W
 H

W
Y

 /
 B

U
S.

 6
9

T
O

W
N

E
R

 R
D

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

S
IT

E

L
A

K
E

 L
A

N
S

IN
G

 R
D

H
A

S
L

E
T

T
 R

D

OKEMOS RD

C
O

L
E

M
A

N
 R

D
O

L
D

 7
8I 

6
9

PARK
 L

AK
E R

D

MARSH RD

L
A

K
E

 

L
A

N
S

IN
G

 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A



ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
1" = 200'

EXHIBIT B



OVERALL SITE PLAN
1" = 140'

EXHIBIT C

TOWNER RD

WETLAND A

WETLAND C

WETLAND E

SOCCER FIELD SOCCER FIELD

BASEBALL FIELD

BASEBALL FIELD

PARKING LOT
PARKING 
LOT

PAVED
PATH

BOARDWALK IN WETLAND
SEE EXHIBITS D & E

PAVED
PLAZA



BOARDWALK DETAILS

EXHIBIT D

PLAN VIEW
1" = 30'

CROSS-SECTION
HORIZONTAL 1" = 20'
VERTICAL 1" = 4'



BOARDWALK DETAILS

EXHIBIT E

m 
IL 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

161 

oc 

1-112• DIA erea I-IANDAAIL 
PAINT eLACK TO HATCI-I FENCE fii!AIL-~ 

4><6 GLIAR:>fii!AIL POST t CMAIN 
LIN<. FAeRIC. ---------.. 

lx6 ca-FOSITE DECKING 

60L.ID 61..0CKING BE1UEEN 
JOISTS • Pl~ LINES 

CilJA~IL catECTICIN 

I. , 
_.,I 1'' 81 I Is.., 

l.U ~6T if! t:J r-y t ~ l-Vl' 
(2) 2xl2 BEAM ,. I"'' 

L1~ "' 
eRACl(ET A66EMeL y.: --

CAL PIER fii!ATED FOR ~I ........... 

~~, 

1TING GRADE--------" 

SECTION 
----S'-611·---'* 

~ 4x6 CilJA~IL 
Po&T. 

1-1121 DIA STEEL f.lANDAAIL 
PAINT eLACK TO HATQ.I FENCE fii!AIL 

SPACE Po&T& 6 1-6 11 Ot;. 

21 OD. BLACK VINYL COATED 
TOP fii!AIL 

2x2, IIZ' GA. eLACK VINYL COATED CI-IAN 
LIN<FABRIC 

I~ lx6 CGt!PO&ITE DECKING 6CFiEW TO JOl&T& 

f.lELICAL PIER fii!ATEP ~ 
~) 

<2J 2xl2 eEAM 

2xl2 JOIST 161 OC 

2xl2 eoL.ID eLOCKING 
2xl2 JOIST 161 OC 

r n °t-1 <2) 2xl2 6EAM 
..........__ eRACl(ET 

- - AeeEMel. "( 

f.lELICAL Pl~ fii!ATEP ~ (WOfcl(INGJ 

-----exr&TING GRADE 

~ 13' Ot;. MAX--- ELEvATION 



OVERALL DRAINAGE PLAN
1" = 140'

EXHIBIT F

TOWNER RD

WETLAND A

WETLAND C

WETLAND E

SOCCER FIELD SOCCER FIELD

BASEBALL FIELD

BASEBALL FIELD

PARKING LOT
PARKING 
LOT

PAVED
PLAZA

BASIN 1

BASIN 3

BASIN 4

BASIN 2



BASIN 1 DRAINAGE
1" = 60'

EXHIBIT G

TOWNER RD

BASEBALL FIELD

PARKING 
LOT

BASIN 1

OVERFLOW 

STRUCTURE 
RIM 866.75

FIELD 
UNDERDRAIN

BASIN 1 IS A VEGETATED DETENTION BASIN THAT ACCEPTS RUN OFF FROM A 

PARKING LOT AND BASEBALL FIELD. BOTTOM OF BASIN IS 864. OVERFLOW 

STRUCTURE RIM ELEVATION IS 866.75. OVERFLOW DRAINS TO BASIN 3 VIA PIPE. 

12" PIPE

12" PIPE

INV. 865.72



BASIN 3 OVERFLOW DRAINAGE TO WETLAND C
1" = 60'

EXHIBIT H

BASIN 3

BASIN 3 IS A VEGETATED DETENTION BASIN THAT ACCEPTS RUN OFF FROM 

THE SOCCER FIELD AND OVERFLOW FROM BASIN 1. BOTTOM OF BASIN IS 

862. OVERFLOW SPILLWAY ELEVATION (NO STRUCTURE OR PIPE) IS 863.80. 

OVERFLOW DRAINS TO WETLAND C. 

SOCCER FIELD

WETLAND C

INVERT FROM BASIN 1 
OVERFLOW 862.40

BASIN 3 OVERFLOW 

SPILLWAY 863.80

20' WETLAND 
BUFFER

SILT FENCE TYP

FIELD UNDERDRAIN



BASIN 4 OVERFLOW DRAINAGE TO WETLAND E
1" = 60'

EXHIBIT I

BASIN 4 IS A VEGETATED DETENTION BASIN THAT ACCEPTS RUN OFF FROM 

THE SOCCER FIELD AND PAVED TRAIL AREAS. BOTTOM OF BASIN IS 864. 

OVERFLOW SPILLWAY ELEVATION (NO STRUCTURE OR PIPE) IS 864.90. 

OVERFLOW DRAINS TO WETLAND E. 

BASIN 4 OVERFLOW 

SPILLWAY 864.90

BASIN 4

WETLAND E

SOCCER FIELD

FIELD UNDERDRAIN

20' WETLAND 
BUFFER

SILT 

FENCE TYP



BASIN 2 DRAINAGE TO WETLAND A
1" = 60'

EXHIBIT J

TOWNER RD

BASEBALL FIELD

PARKING 
LOT

BASIN 2

BASIN 2 IS A VEGETATED DETENTION BASIN THAT ACCEPTS RUN OFF FROM 

THE PARKING LOT AND PICKLEBALL COURTS. BOTTOM OF BASIN IS 870. 

OVERFLOW SPILLWAY ELEVATION (NO STRUCTURE OR PIPE) IS 871.90. 

OVERFLOW DRAINS TO WETLAND A. 

WETLAND A

INVERT FROM 

PARKING LOT 870

BASIN 2 OVERFLOW 

SPILLWAY 871.90

TOWNSHIP REGULATED
UNREGULATED BY DEQ

COURTS

PR STORM 
PIPE TYP

NOTE: WETLAND A IS NOT REGULATED BY THE MDEQ, HOWEVER IT IS 

REGULATED BY THE TOWNSHIP. 

20' WETLAND BUFFER

SILT FENCE TYP



M
e

ri
d

ia
n

 T
o

w
n

sh
ip

 P
a

rk
 -

 T
o

w
n

e
r 

R
o

a
d

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
re

a
s

Im
p

P
e

rv
io

u
s

Im
p

P
e

rv
io

u
s

A
v

e
ra

g
e

2
y

r/
2

4
h

r
fi

rs
t 

fl
u

sh

T
o

ta
l A

re
a

P
e

rv
io

u
s

Im
p

e
rv

io
u

s
D

ra
in

s 
to

 
P

e
rv

io
u

s 
C

Im
p

e
rv

io
u

s 
%

o
f

%
 o

f
w

e
ig

h
te

d
 

w
e

ig
h

te
d

w
e

ig
h

te
d

B
a

n
k

fu
ll

1
/2

 i
n

ch

D
ra

in
a

g
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t
sq

ft
sq

ft
sq

ft
B

a
si

n
 #

fa
ct

o
r

C
 f

a
ct

o
r

to
ta

l
to

ta
l

C
 f

a
ct

o
r

c 
fa

ct
o

r
C

 f
a

ct
o

r
cf

t
cf

t

A
1

6
8

9
4

7
9

7
4

8
4

7
1

4
6

3
1

0
.4

0
.9

5
4

2
5

8
0

.4
0

1
8

4
1

0
.2

3
0

8
0

4
0

.6
3

2
0

,0
4

7
4

,4
5

3

B
5

3
6

3
6

0
5

3
6

3
6

2
0

.4
0

.9
5

1
0

0
0

0
.9

5
0

0
.9

5
9

,5
5

7
2

,1
2

3

C
2

2
3

3
1

2
1

9
2

0
8

4
3

1
2

2
8

3
0

.4
0

.9
5

1
4

8
6

0
.1

3
0

.3
4

0
.4

8
1

9
,9

7
5

4
,4

3
8

D
1

3
4

9
1

2
1

2
8

8
0

3
6

1
0

9
2

0
.4

0
.9

5
5

9
5

0
.0

4
0

.3
8

0
.4

2
1

0
,7

5
2

2
,3

8
9

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

R
e

q
. 

C
F

T
R

e
q

. 
C

F
T

M
e

e
ts

M
e

e
ts

B
a

si
n

B
o

tt
o

m
 a

re
a

B
o

t.
 e

le
v

.
T

o
p

 A
re

a
T

o
p

 e
le

v
.

D
e

p
th

cf
t

g
a

l
B

a
n

k
fu

ll
F

ir
st

 f
lu

sh
B

a
n

k
fu

ll
F

ir
st

 F
lu

sh

1
2

6
3

0
8

6
4

1
3

3
6

0
8

6
6

.7
5

2
.7

5
2

0
,0

9
1

1
5

0
,2

9
2

2
0

,0
4

7
4

,4
5

3
T

R
U

E
T

R
U

E

2
5

7
4

2
8

7
0

1
0

3
4

2
8

7
1

.9
1

.9
1

5
,0

6
7

1
1

2
,7

0
9

9
,5

5
7

2
,1

2
3

T
R

U
E

T
R

U
E

3
4

6
8

7
8

6
2

1
9

6
6

1
8

6
3

.8
1

.8
2

0
,3

6
9

1
5

2
,3

6
7

1
9

,9
7

5
4

,4
3

8
T

R
U

E
T

R
U

E

4
9

0
7

4
8

6
4

1
7

0
9

8
8

6
4

.9
0

.9
1

1
,5

8
8

8
6

,6
8

7
1

0
,7

5
2

2
,3

8
9

T
R

U
E

T
R

U
E

E
xi

st
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

re
a

s:
cu

m
m

u
la

ti
v

e
6

7
,1

1
5

@
 f

u
ll

 s
it

e
 d

e
si

g
n

p
ro

v
id

e
d

B
a

se
d

 o
n

 e
xi

st
in

g
 i

m
p

e
rv

io
u

s 
o

n
ly

…

E
xi

st
in

g
 t

h
e

o
re

ti
ca

l B
a

n
k

fu
ll

E
xi

st
in

g
 t

h
e

o
re

ti
ca

l 
1

0
0

 y
e

a
r 

e
v

e
n

t

sf
t

R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

cf
t

F
ir

st
 F

lu
sh

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 a

re
a

E
xi

st
in

g
 s

it
e

 I
m

p
e

rv
io

u
s 

a
re

a
1

2
3

2
0

2
,1

9
5

4
8

8

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 in
 I

m
p

e
rv

io
u

s
1

5
0

1
1

6
2

6
,7

4
8

5
,9

4
2

2
0

,2
7

2
p

ro
v

id
in

g
 

6
7

,1
1

5
cf

t
so

 m
e

e
ts

 b
a

n
k

fu
ll

 a
n

d
 f

ir
st

 f
lu

sh
 a

n
d

 1
0

0
 y

r



In
g
h
a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 D
ra

in
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

A
re

a
3
.4

4
6
1
8
9

A
c
re

s
1
5
0
1
1
6

s
ft

C
 F

a
c
to

r
0
.9

5
U

n
it
le

s
s

M
a
x
im

u
m

 a
llo

w
a
b
le

 d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
0
.5

1
6
9
2
8

c
fs

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 0

.1
5
 c

fs
 p

e
r 

a
c
re

1
0
0

Y
e
a
r

D
u
ra

ti
o
n
 M

in
D

u
ra

ti
o
n
 H

o
u
rs

In
te

n
s
it
y

R
a
in

fa
ll

C
 F

a
c
to

r
R

u
n
o
ff

O
u
tf

lo
w

R
e
q
. 
S

to
ra

g
e

m
in

In
c
h
e
s
/H

o
u
r

In
c
h
e
s

c
ft

c
ft

c
ft

1
0

0
.1

7
7

1
.1

7
0
.9

5
1
3
8
6
4
.8

8
3
1
0
.1

5
7

1
3
,5

5
4
.7

2
1
0

2
0

0
.3

3
5

1
.6

7
0
.9

5
1
9
8
0
6
.9

7
6
2
0
.3

1
4

1
9
,1

8
6
.6

6
2
0

3
0

0
.5

0
3
.8

1
.9

0
0
.9

5
2
2
5
7
9
.9

5
9
3
0
.4

7
1
1

2
1
,6

4
9
.4

8
3
0

4
0

0
.6

7
3
.2

2
.1

3
0
.9

5
2
5
3
5
2
.9

2
1
2
4
0
.6

2
8

2
4
,1

1
2
.3

0
4
0

6
0

1
.0

0
2
.3

2
.3

0
0
.9

5
2
7
3
3
3
.6

2
1
8
6
0
.9

4
2

2
5
,4

7
2
.6

8
6
0

1
2
0

2
.0

0
1
.4

2
.8

0
0
.9

5
3
3
2
7
5
.7

1
3
7
2
1
.8

8
4

2
9
,5

5
3
.8

3
1
2
0

1
8
0

3
.0

0
1

3
.0

0
0
.9

5
3
5
6
5
2
.5

5
5
5
8
2
.8

2
6

3
0
,0

6
9
.7

2
1
8
0

2
4
0

4
.0

0
0
.8

3
.2

0
0
.9

5
3
8
0
2
9
.3

9
7
4
4
3
.7

6
9

3
0
,5

8
5
.6

2
2
4
0

3
0
0

5
.0

0
0
.6

5
3
.2

5
0
.9

5
3
8
6
2
3
.6

9
3
0
4
.7

1
1

2
9
,3

1
8
.8

9
3
0
0

3
6
0

6
.0

0
0
.5

5
3
.3

0
0
.9

5
3
9
2
1
7
.8

1
1
1
1
6
5
.6

5
2
8
,0

5
2
.1

5
3
6
0

4
2
0

7
.0

0
0
.4

8
3
.3

6
0
.9

5
3
9
9
3
0
.8

6
1
3
0
2
6
.6

2
6
,9

0
4
.2

6
4
2
0

4
8
0

8
.0

0
0
.4

3
3
.4

4
0
.9

5
4
0
8
8
1
.5

9
1
4
8
8
7
.5

4
2
5
,9

9
4
.0

5
4
8
0

5
4
0

9
.0

0
0
.3

9
3
.5

1
0
.9

5
4
1
7
1
3
.4

8
1
6
7
4
8
.4

8
2
4
,9

6
5
.0

0
5
4
0

6
0
0

1
0
.0

0
0
.3

6
3
.6

0
0
.9

5
4
2
7
8
3
.0

6
1
8
6
0
9
.4

2
2
4
,1

7
3
.6

4
6
0
0

7
2
0

1
2
.0

0
0
.3

1
3
.7

2
0
.9

5
4
4
2
0
9
.1

6
2
2
3
3
1
.3

1
2
1
,8

7
7
.8

6
7
2
0

1
0
8
0

1
8
.0

0
0
.2

2
3
.9

6
0
.9

5
4
7
0
6
1
.3

7
3
3
4
9
6
.9

6
1
3
,5

6
4
.4

1
1
0
8
0

1
4
4
0

2
4
.0

0
0
.1

8
4
.3

2
0
.9

5
5
1
3
3
9
.6

7
4
4
6
6
2
.6

1
6
,6

7
7
.0

6
1
4
4
0



March 7, 2016

Towner Road Park Drainage Narrative

The overall drainage concept is to retain as much storm water run off as possible on site and allow it
to infiltrate into the soil. All of the hard surface areas drain to a vegetated basin or a seeded lawn area.
There is not a direct point of discharge to an existing wetland or to off site areas.

The parking lot at the northeast side of the site (Lot A) includes asphalt paving and curb and gutter
around the perimeter. The run off is collected by a system of pipes and catch basins and directed to a
detention basin (basin 1).

The baseball field on the east side of the site slopes at a 1% slope in all directions from the pitchers
mound. The field contains a system of under drains that collect the run off. The under drains are
connected to the surface by a pea stone trench. The under drains direct the run 0ff to a detention
basin (basin 1).

Basin 1 has a bottom grade at 864 and an outlet structure rim elevation set to 866.75, providing 20,091
cubic feet of storage before the water will outlet into the structure. The required storage capacity
based on a 2 year / 24 hour rain event is 20,047 cubic feet, therefore the provided capacity meets the
requirement. The basin also provides a first flush of the storm run off. When the water level of basin 1
reached the outlet structure elevation, it will then drain via storm pipe to Basin 3.

The parking lot at the northwest side of the site (Lot B) includes asphalt paving and curb and gutter
around the perimeter. The run off is collected by a system of pipes and catch basins and directed to a
detention basin (basin 2).

Basin 2 has a bottom grade at 870 and an overflow elevation set at 871.90, providing 15,067 cubic feet
of storage before the water will overflow into the existing wetland. The required storage capacity
based on a 2 year / 24 hour rain event is 9,557 cubic feet, therefore the provided capacity meets the
requirement. The basin also provides a first flush of the storm run off. When the water level reaches
the overflow elevation the run 0ff will overflow into the existing wetland which is not regulated by
the DEQ (but is by the Township). Basin 2 also accepts run off from the pickleball courts, sidewalks,
and picnic pavilion.

The baseball field on the west side of the site, the paved plaza between the ball fields, the concession
building, and the east soccer field drain to Basin 3. The baseball field on the west side of the site
slopes at a 1% slope in all directions from the pitchers mound. The field contains a system of under
drains that collect the run off. The under drains are connected to the surface by a pea stone trench.
The paved plaza drainage and roof run off from the concession building is collected by a catch basin
and directed via pipe to Basin 3. The soccer field is drained by a network of sand trenches and under
drains that collect run off and outlet into Basin 3.

IRIDIS 
Design Group 

313 North Burdick Street 

Kalamazoo, MI 49007 

(269) 978-5143 

(866) 683-5060 (fax) 

Innovative itc Sustainable itc Client Focused 

www.virdg.com 

1430 Monroe, Suite 105 

Grand Rapids, MI 49505 

( 616) 438-9841 

(866) 683-5060 (fax) 



Basin 3 has a bottom elevation of 862 and an overflow elevation of 863.80, which provides 20,369
cubic feet of storage. The required storage capacity based on a 2 year / 24 hour rain event is 19,975
cubic feet, therefore the provided capacity meets the requirement. The basin also provides a first
flush of the storm run off. When the water level reaches the overflow elevation the water will
overflow into an existing wetland area.

The soccer field and some areas of the paved path drain to basin 4. The soccer field is drained by a
network of sand trenches and under drains that collect run off and outlet into the detention basin.
Basin 4 has a bottom elevation of 864 and an overflow elevation of 864.90, which provides 11,588
cubic feet of storage. The required storage capacity based on a 2 year / 24 hour rain event is 10,752
cubic feet, therefore the provided capacity meets the requirement. The basin also provides a first
flush of the storm run off. When the water level reaches the overflow elevation the water will
overflow into an existing wetland area.

The proposed increase in impervious surfaces includes 150,116 square feet (3.44 acres), which based on
the 100 year storm event would require 20,272 cubic feet of storage. The site provides 67,115 cubic feet
of storage, thus exceeding the requirement.

Based on the County’s requirements of the 100 year storm and a discharge rate of 0.15 cubic feet per
second per acre, the storage requirement is 30,585.62 cubic feet. The site provides 67,115 cubic feet of
storage, thus exceeding the requirement.

Innovative ie, Sustainable • Client Focused 

www.virdg.com 


	EC070616
	EnvComm 060116Minutes WS
	EnvComm 060116Minutes RM
	FTCH Review Letter June 30 2016
	5-25 WUP JPA- signed
	5-25 WUP Documents


<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /All

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



